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MINUTES OF MEETING PALM GLADES
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Palm Glades Community Development District was held on Tuesday, January 14, 2020 at 6:30 p.m. at the Silver Palms by Lennar Clubhouse, 23770 SW 115th Avenue, Miami, Florida.

Present and constituting a quorum were:

Mauricio Pelaez Jesus (Jay) Vazquez Bryant Xavier

Also present were:

Juliana Duque Luis Hernandez
Andressa Navarette Scott Cochran Monica Henning Nick Krittel
Joe Diaz
James Fernandez Juan Salas Francis Carmena Residents
 Chairman Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary



District Manager
Governmental Management Services GMS
District Counsel Clubhouse Director
KW Property Management Delta Five Security
Delta Five Security Delta Five Security Delta Five Security


Segment I:
FIRST  ORDER OF BUSINESS	Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
Ms. Duque called the meeting to order at 6:34 p.m. and called the roll. All Supervisors were present with the exception of Mr. Lugo and Ms. Baluja. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited.

	Delta Five Security Update (Added)

Ms. Duque: Present today is Delta Five Security (Delta Five). They would like to speak before we continue with the agenda. Joe, please join us.
Mr. Diaz: Good evening everyone. Most of you know me, but I would like to introduce myself for the record. I am Joe Diaz, President and CEO of Delta Five. Thank you for having me here and allowing us to continue serving the community and providing
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the security services that you deserve. I am here today, primarily to introduce a couple of new managers. As some of you already know, Kevin McIntyre, Vice President of Operations who had been with the company close to 11 years, resigned for personal reasons. We parted on good terms and wish him the best. As you know, Silver Palms to me personally, is not only just an account or a post. We have been here as long as some of you have lived here since this community was young. When I first arrived here, you had about 400 homes. How many do we have now?
Mr. Pelaez: 1,700 homes.
Mr. Diaz: To me, this community is like family. To us, its personal. It is very important for us to make sure that we continue to provide excellent customer service to all of you and the residents of the community. I don't want to take too much of your time because I know that you have very important issues to discuss today. Kevin's position as Executive Manager is going to be taken over by James Fernandez, who is Executive Vice President. He has been in the industry for 20 years. I will let him speak for a few minutes to give you a snapshot of what he is experiencing. The Account Manager assigned to the account is Francis Carmena. I received praise from just about every client she handles. She has a high attention to detail. She is responsive, takes care of issues and subscribes to our philosophy, which is if an issue is identified and corrected promptly without delay and to the client's satisfaction, everything should be fine. Lastly, I would like to introduce a new generation of Delta Five, Juan Salas. Juan is my stepson and a graduate of FIU in their business school. He has been working with the company for seven years now. When he graduated a couple of years ago, I told him, "Come into the business. If you enjoy it, stay, if not, go down your own path because if you don't like it, it is going to be very hard to get up in the morning and go to work." Lucky for us and for him, he runs the business side, but he also supports operations.
Mr. Fernandez: Thank you for having us. My name is James Fernandez and I am the Executive Vice President of Delta Five. With Francis, you can be rest assured that your account is in good hands, and we are going to do everything in our power to ensure that things are addressed promptly. My cellphone number is on my business card. If you see anything, call me. I live close by. Francis also lives in the area. Thank you for the opportunity to manage this account because it's very close and dear to Joe.
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January 14, 2020	Palm Glades CDD
Ms. Duque: Thank you so much. Are there any questions from the Board? Hearing none, thank you so much Joe, James, Juan and Francis.
Mr. Pelaez: Thank you for all of the hard work that Delta Five has provided, even with the staff changes. You guys were right on top of it. Joe brought in great people. I see them working in the clubhouse, making sure that the community is taken care of. So, thank you for that. We appreciate it.
Mr. Diaz: Please reach out to us with any questions or concerns. No question is not important or irrelevant. Our motto is honesty, transparency and excellent customer service.

SECOND  ORDER OF BUSINESS	Approval	of	Minutes	of	the
December 10, 2019 Meeting
Ms. Duque: This is the time to make any corrections, additions or deletions to the minutes of the December 10, 2019 meeting.
Mr. Cochran: I have a minor change on Page 4. Under Staff Reports, "ad-valorem assessments" should be "non-ad-valorem."
Ms. Duque: We will make that change. Are there any other comments?
Mr. Pelaez: Are you reviewing all of the minutes or just the attorney section?
Mr. Cochran: Our office reviews them. Most of my concern is about what is represented. I just want to make sure it's accurate. I pay more attention to what I say.

On MOTION by Mr. Xavier seconded by Mr. Vazquez with all in favor the Minutes of the December 10, 2019 Meeting were approved as amended.


THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public	Hearing	to	Consider	the
Imposition of Special Assessments
Ms. Duque: I will allow Luis Hernandez to present this item.
Mr. Hernandez: Thank you very much, Juliana. The reason I am here today is to finish an item that we started two months ago. Just to bring everyone up to speed, the Board approved including an annexed area as part of the District boundaries. The portion I'm referring to is the parcel adjacent to the club. It is a small piece of property that will have 43 units built on it. The District presented the change to the boundaries to the county, and now that piece of property has been included as part of the COD. At the last meeting, I
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presented the Master Assessment Methodology Report. You will find a copy of it as part of the public hearing.

	Motion to Open the Public Hearing

Ms. Duque: The first action from the Board is a motion to open the public hearing.

Jn favor the public hearing was opened.
ez seconded by Mr. Xavier wi·tlh a1II II
J
nn- -


	Supplemental Engineers Report for Silver Palms Midtown Annex

Mr. Hernandez: In Section 3B, is a copy of the Engineers Report, which the Board approved at the last meeting. Basically, it provides the costs for the public improvements. The report itself was dated November 21, 2019. As of yet, it does not need to be revised. The important part of this report is to define the total cost. If you look at Page 7 of the report, it not only describes the different improvements that needs to be made, but provides the total amount of the cost of those improvements, which is $1,363,000. Does anyone from the Board have any questions?
Mr. Vazquez: How does this usually work? When someone purchases a new home, does this get divided by those 43 homes?
Mr. Hernandez: We are not at that stage yet. We are only at the first step. We are telling whomever wants to hear it, how much it would cost to complete all of the public improvements. The second step is for the Board to approve the methodology, which is the next item. Does anyone from the audience have any questions? Hearing none, we need a motion to approve the Supplemental Engineers Report dated November 12, 2019.
Mr. Pelaez: Where do these cost estimates come from?
Mr. Hernandez: They need to tell the developer how much it would cost. The only part that is separated are the public improvements. Based on the proposals the landowners received, the public improvements would cost $1.3 million.
Mr. Xavier: So, these numbers come from the developer?
Mr. Hernandez: Yes. They are the ones who have contracts with different vendors.
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On MOTION by Mr. Vazquez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor the Supplemental Engineers Report for the Silver Palms Midtown Annex dated November 12, 2019 was approved.


Mr. Hernandez: Thank you very much.


	Master Assessment Methodology for Series 2020 Bonds Annexed Area
file_11.png


Mr. Hernandez: The Master Assessment Methodology was presented on November 12th. This is the instrument that takes the Engineers Report and quantifies how much money should be in the bonds and how these bonds will be allocated for those 43 units. If you look at the parcel, it's separated by two bollards. So, what we have done so far and what the methodology explained, is that the total was allocated based on acreages. When they plat it, the District will allocate it to 43 units. The methodology would establish the mechanism specifically for that area. No other property within the Palm Glades COD will be responsible for it. So, if the District, when they issue the bonds, doesn't have an increase in the number of units, that is called a true-up. There is an agreement that the District will be signing with the developer when the bonds are issued, whereby the developer will be responsible for the allocated debt and the number of units. If there are any discrepancies, they are responsible for paying them and bringing everything back to what the methodology has presented. The easiest way to see this is in the tables. Table 1 shows how many units we have. The beauty and the simplicity of this Methodology Report is that all of the units have the same product type. Originally when the District was established, there were single-family homes, townhomes, all different types, but in here, there is only one product type with 43 units. That is what Table 1 shows. Table 2 shows the District Engineer's estimate, which is $1,363,800. Table 3 takes that number and what the underwriter of the District will invest. In order for us to have $1.3 million in public improvements, the District needs to issue approximately $1,750,000 million in bonds. That is based on some parameters; an interest rate of 4.5%, issuing the bonds for 30 years and 10 years of capitalized interest (Cl). The District is going to be issuing bonds that requires 50% of Cl. If all of those requirements are met, the District will be able to quantify, not only how much to allocate to each parcel, but define it in a way that can be explained. Table 4 defines the cost that was presented by the District Engineer, so if someone wants to
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quantify the total cost of just the improvements, $31,000 is being spent for the public improvements. Table 5 adds into the equation, the bonds. So now the total amount that needs to be allocated per parcel, comes out to $40,697.67. The most important part is the total amount that will have to be paid annually, which is $2,493. So, if everything takes place, each one of those properties will be paying that, unless the developer does anything different. Table 6 refers to two parcels that only have 7.19 acres. The debt has been allocated based on the acres. With that being said, does the Board have any questions?
Mr. Pelaez: No.
Mr. Hernandez: Before I proceed, does anyone from the audience have any questions? Hearing none, the recommendation from staff is for the Board to approve the Master Assessment Methodology for the Series 2020 bonds dated November 12, 2019.

On MOTION by Mr. Xavier seconded by Mr. Pelaez with all in favor the Master Assessment Methodology for the Series 2020 bonds dated November 12, 2019 was approved.


	Public Comment and Testimony

Mr. Hernandez: I am required to ask if anyone has any comments or testimony regarding the annexed parcel and what is being discussed. Hearing none, we can proceed.

	Approving the Project and Declaring that Special Assessments will pay for the Project

Mr. Hernandez: This item does not require any action, but requires the Board to
acknowledge what is taking place. The purpose is to pay for all of the public improvements. According to the Statute, the District is going to be paying for this project through a levy on that particular area. So, Item E approves the project and declares the special assessment. There are going to be some specific resolutions that the Board will be approving and ratifying, but the intent by Statute, is to make the Board aware of what you are doing. So, with that being said, does any Supervisor have any questions? Hearing none,
Mr. Cochran: I would ask for a motion approving the project as described in the District Engineer's Report and declaring the special assessments that are described in the Master Assessment Methodology that the Board just approved to pay for that project.
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On MOTION by Mr. Xavier seconded by Mr. Pelaez with all in favor approving the project and declaring special assessments to pay for the project was approved.
.


	Equalization of Assessments

Mr. Hernandez: There is a further requirement for the Board to approve the equalization of assessments. What that means, is that if there are different product types, the Board needs to recognize what is being used. In this particular case, all of the products are equal, so the equalization is kind of a given. There is nothing to be done.
Mr. Cochran: I was just going to explain this because its bizarre language that you might not be familiar with. The reason there are so many formalities is it's all set forth in the Florida Statutes, specifically Chapter 170. It has different requirements. That's why we had to advertise the public hearing on the assessments today. So, what the Statutes require, when there is an assessment levied like this for debt assessments, is for the COD Board to sit as an Equalizing Board to equalize these special assessments. The Statute does not give very specific guidance on what that means, but it describes adjusting and equalizing assessments on the basis of justice and right. That is your operating standard. Basically, as Luis described in the Methodology Report, it's spread out equally over 43 units, but sitting as an Equalizing Board, you would have the opportunity, if you believe there's a better way to do it that would comply with justice and right, now would be the time to discuss that. That is basically what that means.
Mr. Vazquez: The only question I have, is once this is all set and finalized, can the
developers come back and say that they want to change it; instead of 43 units, making it 40 units and throwing in a couple of townhouses? Can that happen?
Mr. Hernandez: Any changes will have to come before the Board for consideration. So, there is nothing they can do for what is being approved without getting approval from the Board.
Mr. Vazquez: Okay.
Mr. Cochran: In addition, when the bonds are issued, there are additional constraints that are brought about because of a Trust Indenture between the District and the trustee that handles the bond funds once they are issued and sold. The bottom line is it
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is pretty locked in, but any changes would come back to you and be dealt with in the Trust Indenture.
Mr. Xavier: When would the bonds be issued and who would sell them?
Mr. Hernandez: They will be issued approximately two to three months from today. The way that they would be issued is through our District Underwriter in an Offering Memorandum. They will be following procedures where any qualified investor would receive information and have the ability to purchase the bonds if they choose to do so. Typically, and normally, those are being issued in portions. So, the individual investing, has the option to buy the bonds as a whole or in portions; however, these bonds are only limited to qualified investors.
Mr. Xavier: I understand.
Mr. Hernandez: Hearing no other questions, does the Board want to take any actions on the equalization of assessments?
Mr. Cochran: I just wanted to make the Board aware of that. I'm sure Luis will present the resolution. If you adopt the resolution, then you would essentially have equalized the assessments in the manner discussed.

	Adoption of Resolution #2020-04

Mr. Hernandez: To tie into what Scott is saying, you have a copy of Resolution #2020-04 in your agenda package. Basically, what that resolution does is it formalizes the adoption of the Engineer's and Methodology Reports, confirms the project, that the Board has been acting as an Equalization Board and the agreements will be fair. I don't know if you want to give any further explanation to the resolution, Scott.
Mr. Cochran: Yes. Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, requires a resolution to take this action. The resolution effectively levies the special assessments that are in the Assessment Methodology Report, for the purpose of paying for the project described in the Engineer's Report. By adopting this resolution, you levy special assessments, which becomes a lien on properties in the expansion area and describes the process leading up to this point, the public notice, the public hearing, the equalization, etc. Essentially by adopting this resolution, you are saying, "Yes, those assessments are equalized the way we want them to be and the way it's been described and imposing them that way."
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Mr. Hernandez: Unless anyone has any questions, the recommendation from staff is to adopt Resolution 2020-04.

On MOTION by Mr. Pelaez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor Resolution 2020-04 Authorizing the District Expansion Area Project; Equalizing, Approving, Confirming and Levying Special Assessments on Property Specially Benefited by Such Projects to Pay the Cost Thereof; Providing for the Payment and the Collection of Such Special Assessments by the Method Provided for by Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes; Confirming the District's Intention to Issue Special Assessment Bonds; Providing for Severability, Conflicts and an Effective Date was adopted.


	Motion to Close the Public Hearing

Ms. Duque: We have another public hearing, so we will proceed to the next item.


FOURTH  ORDER OF BUSINESS	Public	Hearing	Expressing	the
District's Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying, Collecting and Enforcing Non-Ad Valorem Assessments
	Motion to Open the Public Hearing

The public hearing was opened.


	Public Comments and Discussion

Mr. Hernandez: Does anyone from the public have any matters to be presented or any comments regarding the annexed parcel paid through the tax bill for all of the assessments that are going to be levied on that particular parcel? Hearing none,

	Consideration of Resolution #2020-05 Expressing the District's Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying,  Collecting  and  Enforcing  Non Ad Valorem Assessments

Mr. Hernandez: When the District was first established, we entered into an agreement with Miami-Dade County, allowing the District to utilize the uniform method of levying. It empowers the District to include our assessments with the property taxes. As the parcel was annexed to the District, the new property needs to be put into the
file_18.bin





January 14, 2020	Palm Glades COD

agreement, and we will present it to you with this agreement. Resolution #2020-05 provides the intent of the District to be part of utilizing the uniform method of levy. This will be the first step so the District can include that area as part of the agreement with Miami Dade County. With that explanation, unless you have any questions, the recommendation from staff would be to adopt Resolution 2020-05. Are there any questions? Hearing none,
Ms. Duque: Are there any other comments from the Board? Hearing none,

On MOTION by Mr. Vazquez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor Resolution #2020-05 Expressing its Intent to Utilize and Authorizing the Use of the Uniform Method of Levying, Collecting and Enforcing Non-Ad Valorem Assessments Over Real Property Within the Expansion Area of the District's Jurisdictional Boundaries which may be or have been Levied by the District in Accordance with the Provisions of Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes; and Providing an Effective Date was adopted.


	Motion to Close the Public Hearing

Mr. Hernandez: Unless there are any further questions or comments, a motion to close the public hearings would be in order.
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On MOTION by Mr. Xavier seconded by Mr. Vazquez with in favor the public hearings were closed.


	Lennar Invoice for Operation and Maintenance (Added)

Mr. Hernandez: If you don't mind, before we proceed to the workshop, there is one quick item that I want to make the Board aware of. As I was mentioning to the Board at the last meeting, I spoke with Lennar, regarding the fact that now that we have 43 units, sometime in November, they need to be part of the District. The beauty of this is now Lennar needs to be levied for the operation and maintenance (O&M) costs associated with that parcel. Once again, it's the same number that the other properties are paying. One of the reasons I haven't sent this to Lennar yet, is because officially the parcel was annexed to the District on November 16th, but that was on a Saturday. I would like to get Board approval if you agree with my statement, that $581.27 is the net assessment and that is what we are charging all of the homeowners, monthly. What I choose to do, is to start from
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December through September, which would only be 10 months. I could technically count the days. You can use 14 or 16, but it's really up to you. However, I want to remind the Board that all of the costs of the annexation, attorney, engineer and so on, has been paid separately and directly by the developer. So that hasn't affected the District. So, if the Board agrees with my rationale, I will be forwarding this to Lennar for payment. This will be in excess of what we already have in the budget, so it would be an additional cost.
Mr. Pelaez: Good. I think it's perfect like that.
Mr. Hernandez: That's w at I want to hear. I took advantage that the meeting was coming. Since this is coming from the O&M budget, the Board could use whatever they want. With that being said, unless you have any other questions, I will leave the meeting.
Mr. Hernandez left the meeting.
Ms. Duque: We will proceed to the workshop.


Segment II: Workshop Section:
(The Board had a workshop meeting at this time to discuss the following items.)


	Delta Five Company Updates
	FPL Updates

.C.	Discussion of Any Other Projects and Workshop Items


Segment Ill:
FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Authorization	or	Approvals
Requiring Board Action for Items Discussed During Workshop
Ms. Duque: Returning from the workshop section, I will now address the items that were discussed and require Board action. The first item was the yoga classes. One of our residents proposed to the Board to provide yoga classes at the clubhouse. Perhaps the times could be Saturday and Sunday in the morning or they even mentioned Friday night. The cost per person will be $8. They will host free events for firefighters. At the workshop, the resident presented all of the certified documents. At this point, I need a motion to authorize District staff to work on the agreement and get all of the documents in place. If there are any questions or a need for the attorney or myself to come back to the Board, we will do so. If not, we will finalize the agreement and get together with Monica in terms of the schedule. A motion to approve as stated would be in order.
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On MOTION by Mr. Vazquez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor authorization for District Staff to work on the agreement with the yoga instructor and get all documents in place was approved.
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Ms. Duque: The next item is the incident we discussed that took place at the gym with Mr. Torres, who received a letter letting him know that the Board heard what took place. During the workshop section, Mr. Torres and his parents were present. It has been discussed by the Board that the rules and regulations of the clubhouse were violated, so the direction from the Board was to authorize staff to draft a suspension letter, suspending Mr. Torres from full use of the club for one year. I will need a motion from the Board to that effect.
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I- O -M-OTION  by Mr. Pelaez seconded by Mr. Vazquez with I all in favor authorization for staff to draft a suspension letter, suspending Mr. Torres for full use of the club for one year
was

Ms. Duque: The next item is that residents requested a food truck in the parking lot close to the dumpster. As such, the Board authorized the food truck, but we need to make sure that all of the certifications and insurance are in place, naming the District as an additional insurer. The next item is a motion from the Board to approve trivia night in the amount of $324.50.

On MOTION by Mr. Pelaez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor approving the request for a trivia night in the amount of $324.50 was approved.


Ms. Duque: The next item is a motion from the Board to approve a BYOB date night on February 7th in the amount of $309.00.

On MOTION by Mr. Pelaez seconded by Mr. Vazquez with all in favor approving the date night BYOB event on February 7, 2020 in the amount of $309.00 was approved.
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Ms. Duque: The next item is a motion from the Board to approve a cupcake war on February 21st in the amount of $414.50.

On MOTION by Mr. Vazquez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor approving the cupcake war event on February 21, 2020 in the amount of $414.50 was approved.


Ms. Duque: It is important to mention that the HOA will be assisting the clubhouse with those events. The next item is a proposal from Astra to install a remote key fob to restrict access at our main entrance in the amount of $299.00. A motion to approve would be in order.

On MOTION by Mr. Pelaez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor the proposal from Astra to install a remote key fob to restrict access at the main entrance in the amount of
$299.00 was approved.


Ms. Duque: The next item is a Preventative Service Agreement for the air conditioner. We received two proposals; one from Antano Appliance and the other from Aviv. A motion to approve a not-to-exceed amount of $700.00 and authorization for District Staff to work on the agreement with Aviv would be in order.

On MOTION by Mr. Vazquez seconded by Mr. Xavier with all in favor approving a not-to-exceed amount of $700.00 for a Preventative Service Agreement for the air conditioner and authorization for District Staff to work on an agreement with Aviv was approved.


Ms. Duque: The preventative service will be quarterly, and the new maintenance person will make sure that the filters are changed on a monthly basis. The next item is several repair and maintenance items that we need to handle in the clubhouse that are a priority. Any additions or changes to the clubhouse will be placed on hold, like the kid's room. For now, there is just direction from the Board for Monica to make sure that we bring bean bag chairs and for Mauricio to work with Monica to make sure the room looks nice
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and useful to the kids. We will bring that back for discussion again. The other item is direction from the Board for Monica to work with Chandler Construction to replace the gym lights to LEDs. There is nothing else under the workshop session unless there are any questions.
Mr. Vazquez: Do we have filters? Ms. Henning: Yes.

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS	Staff Reports
	Attorney

Mr. Cochran: I have a couple of items. The first item has to do with the bond issues we were discussing earlier. I just wanted to let the Board know that there will be a final hearing on the validation on January 31st. Someone from our office will be there as well as the District Manager. Hopefully we can successfully get those bonds validated. When you are spreading out the debt for more than five years, you are required to have them validated. So, it's just part of the statutory process that we go through, but we will report on that after it happens. The only other matter I was following up on was something that we discussed previously with the non-ad valorem assessments that were charged to the District by the county Special Taxing District for the streetlighting. They were persuaded by our position, so they are reducing those assessments to zero. The District will not be responsible for those non-ad valorem assessments.
Mr. Pelaez: Thank you.
Mr. Cochran: I'm happy to report that.
Ms. Duque: Thank you so much for that report, Scott.


	Engineer

Ms. Duque: The District Engineer had no report.


	Club

Ms. Henning: As far as operations and facilities, as you can see, we still have a long list for work orders, but I am working with Chit Chandler to complete them. Some of the items that were completed were removed off of the list, but the ones in progress that I noted here, have already been completed in this timeframe and we are just continuing to move through them. As far as club updates and projects, the tree trimming that we
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approved at the last meeting was completed by Tony's Landscape. Some photos were provided. They did a great job and were out here as soon as it was approved. It was great to see. As far as value optimization and recommendations, our club uniforms arrived today, so at the next meeting you will see us in our new shirts and jackets.
Ms. Duque: I had the privilege to see them and they are amazing.
Ms. Hemming: They look great. Staff is excited about the jackets. We are in great
shape.
Mr. Pelaez: Good. Did they apply the credit to the invoice? Ms. Hemming: Yes.
Mr. Pelaez: Thank you.
Ms. Hemming: So, everything worked out. As far as some additional storage
options, we are still looking at basically optimizing the space that we have in our current storage area and condensing a lot of the items we have now to create some more space. The vendor fragrances are on hold. We already approved the preventative maintenance for the HVAC system. Miami Pool Tech and the gym equipment are still under review. I will bring that information to the Board by the next meeting. I will also be working with DBL Media as far as replacing some damaged signage. As far as events, the December movie night was great. We had an excellent turnout for Elf. The kids were very excited about our popcorn bar. They really enjoyed themselves. The resident holiday party was also a big hit. Kids had a lot of say. Parents provided great feedback about having The Grinch and Santa there. They really played off of each other. Some of the kids were scared by the Grinch, but ultimately, they came around. Of course, Santa is always a big hit. Santa Lucy was there was well. The HOA worked with us on that. Kids enjoyed the bounce houses. They had a great time. The upcoming events were discussed at the workshop. Movie night is on January 10th, Disney trivia night is on January 24th and parents date night is on February 7th where there will be a salsa dancer. Cupcake wars is on February 21st. In March, there will be another food truck night and an arts and crafts night for the kids. That's all I have.
Ms. Duque: Are there any questions?
Mr. Xavier: I have a couple of items. The basketball courts came out great. I love the glass backboards. They are awesome. Could we look into having a merchant collect payments at the clubhouse, like if people are bringing guests or we have to pay for events? It is a pain to always have to pay with cash or checks.
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Ms. Duque: We can look into that. I have to talk to the accounting department, because they don't handle anything through the accounting department. That's why we collect money orders, but that doesn't mean we can't. Let me get together with them and Monica to try to figure something out.
Mr. Xavier: When I had to pay for a guest, I had to get a cashier's check for $5. It would be nice to be able to swipe a credit card.
Ms. Duque: We will look into that. Mr. Xavier: Thank you.
Ms. Duque: Are there any other questions? Hearing none,
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Ms. Navarette: Good evening. We had our regular trimming and mowing services. We like how the poinsettias turned out at the main entrance and throughout the community. They look good this time of the year. Weeds in the medians and beds were inspected by Juliana. They did a good job taking care of it. BrightView removed spiderwebs from blue agaves throughout the community. Field inspections, quality assessment, pest control and wet checks were provided per the contract. We have the lake maintenance report, and everything is good. The new company is doing a great job. The palm pruning project was completed and mulch was installed. Tony's Landscape installed Sylvester palms. They look good.
Mr. Vazquez: I haven't seen them.
Ms. Navarette: They are at the SW 238th Street roundabout.
Ms. Duque: If you recall, we wanted to have them in before the holiday and they
were.
Mr. Xavier: It does look nice.
Ms. Navarette: It opened up the median a lot. Ms. Duque: Kudos to Dennis and Edwin.
Mr. Pelaez: He has done a great job with the landscaping.
Ms.  Navarette:  We wanted  to bring  to your  attention  that  we sent  letters  to the
owners of houses that had trees encroaching District property. In one case, the wife passed away and we tried to reach the gentleman. We stopped by today and left him Juliana's  card  and another  letter. He removed  some  of them and put them close  to his
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residence, but he still has branches hanging out. So, we are trying to give him a little more time to see how it plays out; if he reaches out to us. Maybe we can give it one more week and inspect it again. If that doesn't happen, we are going to have to take care of it and bill him.
Mr. Vazquez: Is the gentleman's spouse deceased?
Ms. Duque: For all of the properties that have landscaping on COD property, we are giving them a certain time to remove the landscaping, per the letters that were sent. One letter came back to our office. We sent them by certified mail. We are trying to do the good neighbor practice that we have always talked about. This is the property where no one was inside. I left my business card and haven't heard anything. We visited again today and left some copies of the letters being sent as well as my business card. What Andi is saying is that we don't know what people are doing.
Mr. Vazquez: Got it.
Ms. Duque: So, we are trying to bring back that good neighbor practice, because when the first letter was sent, some of the plant material was actually removed and brought close to the property. We noticed that today. So, we are just trying to understand if he is clear on what needs to be done.
Mr. Vazquez: Okay.
Ms. Duque: It's just a matter of time. We are just trying to figure that out. It's also important to mention for the record, that we are trying to do that, but that doesn't mean we are going to let this pass. At some point, if it's not removed, the District will remove it and bill the property owner.
Mr. Vazquez: Thank you.
Ms. Duque: The question is how it's going to be back charged. I mentioned to Mauricio that once again, we collect our assessment through the tax roll. If a specific folio or property has an assessment, we will include the cost of the invoice to that specific property.
Ms. Navarette: That's it.
Mr. Pelaez: Thank you.
Ms. Duque: Are there any questions in terms of the Field Report? Not hearing any,
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Ms. Duque: The only item that I would like to report on, which is not part of the
agenda because I received the documents after the agenda went out, is that we received the First Amendment to the Clubhouse Management Agreement with KW Property Management. The agreement is already signed, and I want to make sure that we ratify it and have it ready and be part of today's record. The only item that we are missing is Exhibit C, which is the schedule. Nick will provide us with the schedule as soon as it is ready. It is just a matter of coordinating with the new person coming in and their specific dates. So, we will make sure that's included as part of the agreement. At this point, I request a motion to ratify the First Amendment to the Clubhouse Management Agreement.

I-
- -
,!I   On MOTION by Mr. Pelaez seconded  by Mr. Xavier with all
i	favor the First Amendment to the Clubhouse Management
1 greement with KW Property Management was ratified.
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Ms. Duque: I was approached by the HOA At the last meeting, the COD agreed to let the HOA pay for certain activities and certain items that were part of the day-to-day activities within the clubhouse. So, we don't have to wait until we receive proposals or the invoices and then go back out for bids or to the management company and process it, we decided to allow them to tackle those items and bring those back to the District. So, we will ratify it and make sure that we reimburse the HOA. That seemed to work perfectly fine to them, because they had the ability to purchase a couple of items that they needed for specific events, as well as some restoration materials that were needed after the Halloween party. That was discussed at a couple of meetings. So, at this time, I need a motion to ratify the COD expenses on the HOA credit card in the amount of $4,997.80.

On MOTION by Mr. Xavier seconded by Mr. Vazquez with all in favor charging COD expenses on the HOA credit card in the amount of $4,997.80 was ratified.


Mr. Pelaez: Are we doing the same thing with the party rental company after these events? Is there any discussion that we can have with them? We are renting chairs. There are three invoices. Can we do something on credit and maybe they can start sending an
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invoice, so we don't have to go through this accounting process every time? I think we rent enough from them that they can probably do something like this. We can use them as vendors, but they need to give us a credit if possible.
Ms. Duque: I agree.
Ms. Henning: I will reach out to them.
Mr. Vazquez: There are administrative costs that over time builds up. Ms. Henning: I will reach out to them to confirm.
Mr. Vazquez: We are not going anywhere.
Mr. Pelaez: Exactly. They have seen our history of rentals. Ms. Duque: Thank you Monica.
Ms. Henning: Absolutely.
Ms. Duque: Are there any questions from the Board? Not hearing any,


SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Financial Reports
A.        Approval  of the Check Register
8.       Balance and Income Statement
Ms. Duque: Tab A is the Check Register and Tab B is the Balance Sheet and Income Statement. Unless anyone has any questions, a motion to approve these items would be in order.
Mr. Pelaez: A couple of these just say, "Taxpayer Tax Receipts - $750,000." It was probably to Wells Fargo. I think there are three of those. It is on Page 3 of the Check Register.
Ms. Duque: We start receiving the payments for the taxes and my accounting department transfers it to the General Fund. Remember, the General Fund is where we get our O&M. The one before that one for Ocean Bank Factoring is from the security company, Delta Five. The way that they send us the invoices are through Ocean Bank. So, we pay Ocean Bank for the security services.
Mr. Pelaez: There was one on Page 2 that said, "Delta Five Security." Ms. Duque: Exactly.
Mr. Pelaez: What is the difference on that one and the one for Ocean Bank?
Ms. Duque: It's the way they send their invoices. If you want, I can get more clarification.
Mr. Pelaez: I know you look at the invoice.
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Mr. Vazquez: It says, "Delta Five Security for $2,269.99" and at the bottom it was subtracted.
Ms. Duque: That could be on our accounting department side. The way we pay Delta Five is through Ocean Bank. That's the way we have always done it. I will ask our accounting department and get back to you. Before, we used to pay Delta Five directly, they entered into this agreement with Ocean Bank and now we pay Ocean Bank. You can see that the date of the invoices is November for both, so what could have taken place is they put it on the accounting line and the accountant figured out that it was the wrong line item, so she changed it and then paid it to Ocean Bank.
Mr. Pelaez: She did that in December.
Ms. Duque: Correct. The one prior to that was November 28th. Mr. Pelaez: I saw it.
Ms. Duque: That is most likely what happened. Let's say that we have different vendors that have always used an account, that account due to audit reports, will always be there in our records. So, we will have Delta Five as part of one of the accounts that we used. If the vendor tells us not to pay it directly, we will use Ocean Bank, but maybe we will just document that it was the wrong account. I will dig into it a little more and bring you more information.
Mr. Pelaez: My last question is that on Page 5, I see a transfer to SBA for investment with the State Board of Administration. I would like some clarification on how those funds get transferred.
Ms. Duque: We opened a State Board account. We have the money there, but it's there in case of a hurricane. Are there any other questions? Hearing none, we need a motion to approve.

On MOTION by Mr. Xavier seconded by Mr. Vazquez with all in favor the December 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019 Check Register, Balance Sheet and Income Statement were approved.


EIGHTH  ORDER OF BUSINESS	Supervisors	Requests
Audience Comments
Ms. Duque: Are there any Supervisors requests?
 and
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Mr. Cochran: What is at the end of the Field Report?
 Palm Glades CDD
Ms. Duque: It is for informational purposes. Under Repair and Maintenance, we have a line item in our budget for irrigation repairs. We would like to bring that back, so the Board is aware of the repairs that took place. There were a couple of repairs that needed to be done in different zones. Actually, it was on timers 1, 2 and 3. Those are as stated on the same invoice per the contract. There is only one item and it was in back of a property. The irrigation pipe broke and water was running on their property. We figured out it was irrigation, so we needed to make repairs. Once again, this is part of repairs and maintenance per the contract.
Mr. Cochran: I just wanted to make sure it didn't require any action. Ms. Duque: Thank you so much for that, Scott.
Ms. Duque: Are there any Supervisor's requests? Hearing none, are there any audience comments? Not hearing any,

NINTH  ORDER OF BUSINESS	Adjournment
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OTION by Mr. Pelaez seconded by Mr. Vazquez with all in favor the meeting was adjourned.
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